
Stanislaus County 

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

 

STANISLAUS COUNTY 

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP 

 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

Monday, December 9, 2024 

Stanislaus County Probation Department 

 

Members/Staff Present 

Mark Ferriera, Chief Probation Officer, Chair, Probation Department 

Jennifer Jennison, Public Defender’s Office 

Jeff Laugero, District Attorney’s Office 

Tony Vartan, Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 

Brandon Gillespie, Chief of Police, Modesto Police Department 

Frank Martinez for Sheriff Jeff Dirkse, Sheriff’s Office 

Michael Walker, Probation Department 

Vicki Martin, Administrative Manager, Probation Department 

 

1. Call to Order and Introductions 

The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m. by Chief Probation Officer Mark Ferriera.   

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no members of the public present. 

 

3. Adoption of Minutes from September 4, 2024 

Chief Ferriera advised that the meeting minutes for September 4, 2024, which took place at 12:30 p.m. following the 

briefings with the Board of Supervisors, which only included the CCP Executive Committee, are unavailable and will 

be voted on at the next CCP Executive Committee Meeting. The membership agreed.  

 

MOTION: Jeff Laugero. SECOND: Jennifer Jennison. The set of meeting minutes from September 4, 2024, which 

included (1) the briefing with Board of Supervisors Vito Chiesa and Buck Condit and (2) the briefing with Board of 

Supervisors Terry Withrow and Manny Grewal, were approved unanimously. 

 

4. Evaluation of the Five-Year Spending Plan 

Vicki Martin, Administrative Manager, reviewed the CCP Five-Year Spending Plan (attached), pointing out the 

following for FY 2024:  

• The CCP Executive Committee spent 79% of the budgeted funding.  

• The overall allocation came in $40,000 short of what was budgeted, resulting in zero growth the following 

year. 

• Ms. Martin reported a fund balance of $31.8 million vs the projected amount of $31.5 million. 

• She noted that 5 months into the current Fiscal Year (FY), 20% of the budget has already been spent, and 

25% of the revenue has been received. 

• Chief Ferriera advised that zero growth will result in a budget loss of $560,000 for the CCP Five-Year 

Spending Plan. He did, however, indicate that growth could potentially change for FY 2025, noting the 

January budget from the Governor’s office will paint a clearer picture of what to expect.  

• Over the next 5 years, the CCP budget, if spent at the noted percentage, will be as follows:  

o -$40 million, at 100% 

o -$17 million at 90%  

o -$5 million at 85%  

o Maintaining expenditures at the historical rate of 81.9% or below will keep the budget out of deficit. 

 



Stanislaus County 

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

 

Chief Ferriera noted that the CCP budget would likely include cost savings. He indicated that Medi-Cal revenue from 

BHRS is expected but has not yet been received. The revenue would offset BHRS’ expenses paid for with CCP 

revenue.  

 

Chief Probation Officer Ferriera asked for an IST update.   

 

Jennifer Jennison from the Public Defender’s Office stated that the fine of $450,000 was paid in September. If 

Stanislaus County continues to surpass the baseline established by the state, the following fine will amount to $4.3 

million. Chief Ferriera inquired whether there was an expectation for the CCP budget to cover the fine. She stated that 

with the assistance of Assistant Chief Executive Officer Ruben Imperial, the IST group is developing a strategy to 

address BHRS’ fine. However, the source of the funds remains uncertain. Chief Probation Officer Ferriera highlighted 

that the Collaborative Courts budget is insufficient to cover the $4.3 million fine. Frank Martinez from the Sheriff’s 

Office indicated that Ruben Imperial joined him on a visit to Kern County to observe the successful practices of Kern 

County’s IST program. He observed that their program is highly comprehensive and involves collaboration among 

doctors, jail deputies, sergeants, psychiatrists, and BHRS.  

 

Chief Gillespie, asked if the county had recovered the $450,000 IST fine from the state, to which it was noted that the 

county had yet to submit the report needed to recover the funding.  

 

5. New Proposals for Funding  

Chief Ferriera indicated that the proposal period will commence on January 1, 2025, and conclude on February 14, 

2025. Expressing his concern about the budget, he indicated that he did not anticipate supporting any proposal given 

the current state of the CCP budget. 

 

The CCP Executive Committee had a lengthy discussion about initiating conversations with the CEO Hayes and 

Ruben Imperial about possibly covering some of the CCP-funded budgeted items with general funds. 

 

The CCP Executive Committee will reconvene on February 20, 2025, at 3:30 p.m. 

 

 The meeting adjourned at 10:44 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 








